ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2005
1:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary W/l ken, Vice Chair
Senator Kim El ton

Senat or Donny O son

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lyda G een
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 84

"An Act relating to the confidentiality of investigations, court
hearings, and public agency records and information in child-in-
need-of-aid matters and certain child protection natters;
relating to immunity regarding disclosure of information in
child-in- need-of-aid mtters and certain child protection
matters; anending Rules 3 and 22, Alaska Child in Need of Aid
Rul es of Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 51

"An Act relating to contracts for the provision of state public
assistance to certain recipients in the state; providing for
regional public assistance plans and prograns in the state;
relating to grants for Alaska Native fam |y assistance prograns;
relating to assignnent of child support by Alaska Native famly
assistance recipients; relating to paternity determ nations and
genetic testing involving recipients of assistance under Al aska
Native famly assistance prograns; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 84

SHORT TI TLE: CHI LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY
SPONSCR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2005



01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD, FIN
02/ 07/ 05 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 51

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C ASSI STANCE PROGRAMS
SPONSCR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 12/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 05 (S) CRA, HES, FIN

01/ 26/ 05 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

01/ 26/ 05 (S) Moved SB 51 Qut of Conmittee

01/ 26/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( CRA)

01/ 27/ 05 (S) CRA RPT 4DP

01/ 27/ 05 (S) DP: STEVENS G WAGONER, KOOKESH, ELLIS
02/ 07/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Mar ci a Kennai

Department of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 84

Jan Rut herdal e

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 84

Scott Cal der
Fai r banks, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 84

Kat heri ne Far nham

Department of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 51

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 1:31:58 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 7, 2005



Present were Senators Kim Elton, Gary WIken, Donny d son, and
Chai r Dyson.

SB 84- CH LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY

CHAI R DYSON asked Marcia Kennai and Jan Rutherdale to present SB
84.

MARCI A KENNAI , deputy conm ssi oner, Ofice of Children's
Services (OCS), and Jan Rutherdale, assistant attorney general

Department of Law introduced SB 84. Ms. Kennai said SB 84 would
protect children’s rights while providing disclosure of sone
agency information. SB 84 opens all child-in-need-of-aid (ClNA

hearings to the public except in certain circunstances. It
expands the circunstances under which the departnment is required
to share confidential information on CINA proceedings. SB 84

woul d increase accountability and increase public awareness and
trust.

1:36:51 PM

MS. RUTHERDALE offered historical background on the issue. Child
protection cases were open hearings in the past due to the fear
of children being sold into slavery. Hearings were |ater closed
to protect children and the stigma attached. Federal |aw
provi des confidentiality of records, presuming it includes court
hearings. In the last 10 years, the press has exposed problens
in the system

1:40:16 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Rutherdale, “Since federal [|aw has
changed to open up court proceedi ngs, how nmany other states have
done so0?”

MS. KENNAI advised 13 states were open with judicial discretion
and 5 states are conpl etely open.

SENATOR ELTON asked how it works when a judge adnoni shes people
who fail to keep secrecy.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied if the court asks for secrecy and a
person divulges information, next tinme they come to court they
could be excluded from proceedings. The press is generally
respectful of abuse victins.

1:43:. 36 PM
CHAIR DYSON asked whether the person would be subject to
contenpt of court.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2005



M5. RUTHERDALE answered yes. Alaska allows the court to open
proceedings if no one objects. The courts announce when the
proceedi ngs are confidential.

1:44: 47 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked whet her Paragraph (11) on page 6 takes care of
allowing for critical information to be dispersed to

pr of essi onal s who provide services to the child.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered it does not. Paragraph (11) deals wth
issues such as a sex offender living in a neighborhood. The
Ofice of Child Services, (OCS) could warn the nother of a child
living next door. That section allows the release of information
to achild at risk. The termcaregiver is a broad definition

1:47: 35 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE advised an existing provision in subsection 9,
subpar agraph 2, “a person or agency requested by the departnent
to provide consultation or services” that would include a
professional to give services to a child or parent. That section
al l ows appropriate information to be shared.

CHAI R DYSON noted the anendnent added the word “confidential” on
line 21.

M5. RUTHERDALE advi sed it was done as a housekeepi ng neasure.

MS. KENNAI stated item 11 refers to childcare providers, and the
departnment can now share any vital information with a parent or
muni ci pality.

1:50: 20 PM

CHAIR DYSON clarified the issue is whether the professional
treating the child can access necessary information in order to
treat the child.

MS. RUTHERDALE answered SB 84 has that issue covered.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether the state determ nes the information
to be rel eased.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered it is at the discretion of the records
hol der. The person determning what is released has the conplete
record. This saves tinme. Sonme information is private even to
rel atives.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2005



1: 52: 57 PM
CHAI R DYSON said sone information in the record is not rel evant
even to the people treating the child.

M5. RUTHERDALE advised the system has checks and bal ances.
I nformation can be rel eased as a court order.

CHAIR DYSON remnded the comrmttee that due to previous
| egi sl ation, |egislators could get access to those records.

1:54: 07 PM

SENATOR DONNY OLSON nentioned the situation with the Mat-Su
abuse case and said SB 84 seens to give a broad ability for
information to be too available to the public.

M5. KENNAI answered a lot of erroneous information cones out
anyway. Wien a parent or foster parent gets charged, the
docunents are public.

SENATOR OLSON said reading into SB 84 appears to further open
information to the public.

SENATOR OLSON asked what happens if you have parents who are
separated and they di sagree regardi ng di scl osure.

M5. RUTHERDALE enphasized there are two sections to SB 84. One
has to do with court hearings and records and the other, agency
records. There are two parts of agency records, one is the
“shall release appropriate information”, and the other section
allows for release to the public, but only in three narrow
si tuations.

1:57: 32 PM

OCS is allowed to respond to the report of harm the outcone,
the services provided, and the course of action. The task force
addressed the issue of parents trying their cases through the
press. SB 84 allows the state the ability to respond to such
situations. SB 84 is tailored to respond to a particular parent,
or a narrow report of harm having to do with the parent. The
reason it is so narrow is there are still federal requirenents
for confidentiality. Federal law allows parents to waive their
right for confidentiality.

2:00: 34 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether anything in SB 84 woul d have prevented
what happened in the Mat-Su valley situation. He added in that

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2005



case the children had been adopted and once the adoption process
is finished, the state is finished.

M5. KENNAI replied it would not have prevented that particular
situation and agreed with Chair Dyson’s coments.

SENATOR ELTON stated Paragraph (11) appears to allow a broader
rel ease of information, but it renoves the requirenment to adopt
regulations that mght determine to whom information can be
rel eased. He asked who nakes the determ nation on whether it is
appropriate to release information.

M5. RUTHERDALE responded the verbiage was noved to Section 13,
subpar agraph (N) that allows the agency to adopt regul ations.

2:03: 30 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Rutherdale to speak to the issue of
dropping the word “shall” and introducing “may”.

M5. RUTHERDALE coul d not reply.

CHAI R DYSON advi sed he is open to anmending SB 84 and addressing
it in judiciary.

SENATOR ELTON reported he is not sure how he feels about SB 84.

2:04:42 PM

CHAIR DYSON advised his interest in Section 16, page 8.
“However, the court may limt the presence of those persons in a
hearing that has been closed.”

2:05:59 PM
M5. RUTHERDALE clarified it is not a change it is the current
| aw.

2:09: 15 PM

SCOIT CALDER, Fairbanks, testified via teleconference that SB 84
is intrinsically related to a history of problenms. He finds
Sections 1 and 2 acceptable. Section 3 has problens on |lines 9-
13 where hearings are closed to the public during an initia
court hearing and a hearing following an initial hearing in
which a parent, child, or other party of a case is present but
has not had an opportunity to obtain |egal representation. The
first few court hearings are when the famly is nost violated by
agency activity. This is when public scrutiny is nost needed.

2:11: 00 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2005



CHAI R DYSON asked M. Calder if initial hearings should be open
to the public.

MR. CALDER replied the DOL often relies on the appearance of
judicial review on its activities. In the early stages, nany
tinmes the people are at a di sadvant age.

2:12: 31 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked about a handbook for parents explaining their
rights.

MR. CALDER said it was never produced. The agency did produce a
“fill-in-the-blank” publication, which causes the parent to feel
subservi ent .

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Rutherdale if parents have a clear right
to ask the judge for |egal help.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether they have the right to ask the judge
to postpone the action until they have | egal representation.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied she was not sure.

2:14:30 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE explained in an energency state custody hearing,
the judge would informthe parents of their rights and give them
the option of leaving the child in state custody until their
attorney was avail abl e.

MR. CALDER said the public should be involved early and often.
Section 7 puts the parent in a disadvantaged position unless
aut horized by the court. He advised the conmttee to elimnate
Section 7. Section 8 is unacceptable. Section 9 should have the
parent at the top of the list of people who can receive
information. Confidentiality has been used as a weapon agai nst
children and famlies by the DO.. Parents should have al
information regarding the <child wunless good cause to do
ot herwi se has been shown.

2:17:12 PM

CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. Rutherdale why the parent isn’t on the
list.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2005



M5. RUTHERDALE answered parents are parties in the action. The
attorney may share any docunents concerning the case with their
client.

CHAI R DYSON asked what is the reason for not having parents on
the list.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered the reason is that attorneys are given
full access to the information and they can share the
information with their clients. There have been instances where
parents have |l eft sensitive information in a public place.

2:20:11 PM

CHAI R DYSON said the list involves a |ot of people who have |ess
interest in the case. He asked if they could add parents to the
list.

M5. RUTHERDALE advised she would get back to the commttee
regarding that issue. The court order allows the parents to get
any necessary information they need. AS 47.10.093 (a) says you
cannot release records without a court order. Subsection (b)
says you can disclose the appropriate information under certain
ci rcunstances without the court order. It’s a known provision.

2:23:03 PM
CHAIR DYSON asked whether that works for parents who are
representing thensel ves.

M5. RUTHERDALE said they would have to go back to the court.

CHAI R DYSON noted in the case of parents who live renotely from
court, it could be inconvenient.

MR. CALDER cited a US Suprene Court ruling that says, “Parents
are not any other person”. He nmintained parents are innocent
until proven guilty. Section 9 refers to a review panel
established by the DOL to review actions by the DO.. M. Cal der
mai ntai ned that this is unacceptable.

2:25:17 PM

The DOL should receive public scrutiny. Section 11 should be
broadened to include parents generally, in terms of the interest
of their own children. Section 13 should point out the fact that
the parent has the authority to request the information. Section
14 should not allow imunity fromliability.

2:27:53 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2005



Page 9, Section 17, (a) and (b) [version\A] should be elimnated
because it denies public access to the initial court hearing.

2:29:31 PM
MR. CALDER sunmed up his testinony advising that there is a
hi story of abuse of power by the state governnent.

2:31:26 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked M. Calder for his witten testinony.

SENATOR ELTON asked regarding page 6, line 26 [version\A], what
is the purpose of saying information could only be disclosed to
a departnentally established review panel.

M5. RUTHERDALE said anything could be discussed within the
departnment. On a specific case the DOL will have an internal
review, Section 9 allows themto bring in a nenber of the public
who i s know edgeabl e of the case.

2:33.14 PM

SENATOR ELTON said this would preclude the review established by
the Governor. The Governor nmay want to nove the review outside
t he departnent.

M5. KENNAI said the DOL has a public citizen review panel that
reviews policy and procedure, but this section of SB 84 refers
to the conm ssioner or deputy commssioner being able to
establish an internal review panel, which allows the departnent
to bring in sonmeone from the outside who is know edgeabl e about
the particul ar case.

2:35:56 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked the reason the citizen review panel is not on
the list of people able to access the information.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered the <citizen review panel addresses
system probl ens not specific cases.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether there is anything in SB 84 or
current state law that allows confidential information to be
shared with either a governor’s panel or a |egislative panel
staff nenber.

M5. RUTHERDALE said in specific cases there are mechanisns in
exi st ence.

2:39:16 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2005



SENATOR ELTON asked if a legislative audit staff has access to
confidential informtion.

MS. KENNAI answered | egislators can request a legislative audit.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether both the legislator and the audit
staff could have access to confidential information.

M5. RUTHERDALE di d not know t he answer.

SENATOR GARY W LKEN repeated earlier questions regarding why
parents are not included in the list of people able to access
confidential information.

2:41: 47 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE advised the commttee that nechanisns already
exist and those nechanisns are adequate. This is a partial
di scovery tool. More records are available through the court.

SENATOR W LKEN asked Ms. Rutherdale to give an exanple of what
trouble could be caused by adding a line with qualifications
that speaks to the parent privileges.

2:45: 04 PM
MS. RUTHERDALE coul d not think of one.

CHAIR DYSON said it seenms strange to not have parents on the
list. He advised the conmittee that he would hold SB 84 unti
the next commttee neeting.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the Indian Child Wlfare Act (1CW)
representatives should be on the |ist.

2:47:18 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE said the system is already set up to share
information. If a tribe intervenes in a case, the order wll
allow free fl owi ng exchange of information

2.:49:57 PM
SENATOR OLSON suggested elimnating Section 8.

MS5. RUTHERDALE said it woul d open up everything.
SENATOR OLSON announced he would like to have everything open to

the parent. He stated he is in favor of parents raising children
as opposed to the governnent raising children.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2005



M5. RUTHERDALE: answered AS 47.10.093(a) refers to children who
fall within the chapter, neaning there has been a petition
filed. Parents and attorneys do have full access in fornmal
cases. SB 84 addresses non-parties.

M5. KENNAI pointed out nost of the information they have cones
fromthe parent.

2:52:30 PM

CHAIR DYSON noted this would be a case involving a child who
conmes to the state through abuse. Chair Dyson suggested the
committee take SB 84 up again in the next conmttee neeting and
asked to have “parent” added to the list or have a solid reason
why they woul d not be added.

2:56:10 PM

SB 51- PUBLI C ASSI STANCE PROGRANMS

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SB 51 to be up for consideration.

2:56:51 PM
KATHRYN FARNHAM Departnent of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS)
introduced SB 51. In 1996 the federal welfare reform program

allowed states flexibility in the inplenentation of welfare
reformwith an enphasis on enploynent. That | egislation has been
successful in Alaska. The caseload reduction is 58 percent since
1994, saving the state $66 mllion dollars. The block grant
program allows the states to create prograns that enphasize
work. This same flexibility was offered to Tribal organizations
in the 1996 law, which allows them to run a tribal Tenporary
Assi st ance to Needy Fam | ies ( TANF) pr ogram Native
organi zations my apply for a federal block grant for the
famlies in their region and serve themdirectly.

To run a fair and equitable programthat is on par with what the
Native famlies could have received from the state, it 1is
necessary to provide state funds. In 2000 the Al aska Legislature
created and passed the Native TANF program providing the
opportunity to help fund locally relevant prograns. The |aw was
made to sunset in June 2005. It was also designated to four of
the 13 original entities. The four included the Tanana Chiefs
Conference (TCC), the Association of Village Council Presidents
(AVCP), Tlingit Haida Central Council (TLCC), and Metl akatl a.

3:00: 03 PM

Reports show the tribal TANF prograns are working. They are
achieving mgration to self-sufficiency though enploynment. This
year they are in discussions with three new native organizations

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2005



that are interested in running a tribal TANF program The three
are Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Bristol Bay Native Association
and the Maniilag Associ ation.

3:02: 22 PM

The recommendation in SB 51 is to extend the program and nmake it
permanent in the statute, and to extend it to the 12 regional
non-profits plus Metlakatla. Many of the regional non-profits
have been contractors to the State of Alaska providing case
managenent services. |If Cook Inlet establishes their TANF
program there will be fiscal inpacts. The attached fiscal note
pertains to Cook Inlet.

3:04:59 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Farnham the kind of provisions there are
for auditing a contractor who provides services such as case
managenent .

M5. FARNHAM advised current contracts are under an unbrella
call ed “wor k services.” Contracts have noni toring and
performance tracks in them In FYO5 those contracts were pay for
performance contracts.

3:06: 39 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked Ms. Farnham what percent woul d Anchorage be
in the budget if the commttee re-authorized the prograns.

M5. FARNHAM replied they have not assessed the size of the Cook
Inlet, Bristol Bay and Maniilaq casel oads. Cook Inlet will have
close to 700 cases.

SENATOR W LKEN asked the guarantee that federal funding wll
continue and what is the obligation of the state.

IVS. FARNHAM said the federal | aw authorizing Tenporary
Assi st ance for Needy Fam |ies IS currently up for
reaut hori zation. It has been reauthorized for several years
wi t hout any substantial changes. If there are structural changes
to the block grant, the programw || have to be re-exam ned.

3:10: 43 PM

SENATOR W LKEN asked M. Farnham if the federal nobney was
reduced in the future could he expect the general fund to nake
up the difference or <could the legislation pare back the
program

M5. FARNHAM was rel uctant to specul ate.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2005



CHAIR DYSON noted in this program the caseload has dim nished
but recipients may be receiving other assistance.

M5. FARNHAM said she has seen cash assistance cases drop
dramatically. Sonme cases are picking up bridge prograns but she
is also seeing famlies utilizing benefits that can help them
stay off cash benefits, for exanple, child care assistance.

3:12: 52 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Farnham whether the fiscal note reflected
state noney fluctuations in prograns.

M5. FARNHAM answered no, but the budget for the division of
public assistance woul d show services trends.

3:14: 04 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Farnham the nunber of people reflected in
t he casel oad reducti on who have gone to worKk.

M5. FARNHAM answered there is a recent division study of why
peopl e | eave TANF prograns. Oten they quit applying. A report
is available on their website. Miultiple issues affect a famly.

3:16: 07 PM

CHAIR DYSON said the federal TANF program encourages states to
invest in making famlies stay together. He asked M. Farnham
how the funding is used to acconplish those federally enphasized
goal s through the funding stream

M5. FARNHAM answered the four purposes of TANF include pronoting
strong famlies and healthy marriages. Because of their high
success rate, Alaska has received a high performance bonus for
three straight years.

3:18: 50 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Farnhamto tal k about tribal fraud.

V. FARNHAM replied part of the provisions for tribal
organi zations to have a TANF program is that they have fraud
mechani snms i n pl ace.

3:20: 42 PM

M5. FARNHAM poi nted out the food stanp error rate in Al aska was
the worst in nation in 2003. Under Tony Lonbardo’s direction
they turned it around and Alaska is now on par wth other

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2005



states. Al the other prograns have seen a marked inprovenent as
wel |, by identifying trends and through training.

CHAI R DYSON said national statistics show that 60 to 70 percent
of all welfare applications have errors or fraud and 25 to 30
percent are fraudulent to sone degree. He would |like to know how
many people are prosecuted and are making restitution.

M5. FARNHAM said DHSS has a strong fraud unit. O the nunber of
cases that are suspected fraud and are reviewed, 30 percent pan
out to be actual fraud.

3:23:10 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked Ms. Farnham for clarification on the fisca
not e.

M5. FARNHAM answered the details are on page four. The current
funding | evel has been the sanme since 2001. Annually the budget
includes 8.7 mllion dollars. Cook Inlet is in the fiscal note
because it is new. The other three are already built into the
budget .

3. 25:48 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked about Maniilaq and Bristol Bay.

M5. FARNHAM replied they were not factored because talks are
ongoi ng.

CHAI R DYSON announced he would hold SB 51 wuntil the next
commttee neeting. There being no further business to cone
before the commttee, Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at
3. 26: 47 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2005



